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CONDITION 
0 Excellent IX) Good 0 Fair 

(Check One) 

Altered 0 Unaltered 

(Check One) 

0 Deteriorated 

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

0 Ruins 

(Check 

0 Moved 

0 Unexposed 

The Capital Hotel opened January 22, 1877, as Little 
Rock's finest hotel. Today after almost 100 years of 
continual use the Capital remains the most significant 
structure of its kind in the State of Arkansas. Located 
at Markham and Louisiana Streets in downtown Little Rock, 
the Capital is constructed of brick with a facade of cast 
iron. The basic dimensions of this four-story, white 
painted structure measure one hundred thirty-two (132') 
feet by one hundred thirty (130') feet. 

This excellent example of Victorian grandeur boasts 
seventeen bays across its-facade. Projecting from the 
center of ·the front elevation is a one-story portico 
five bays in length and supported by six columns with 
Corninthian capitals. The second story porch deck 
is enclosed by a simple wrought iron railing, and sur­
mounted by a canopy edged with decorative iron scroll 
work. 

Across the entire . length of the first story the front 
elevation has engaged Corinthian columns between each 
bay. With the e~ception of the deck projection on the 
second floor, the second and third story facades are 
identical with two sash, semi-elliptical headed windows 
separated by sq~a~~d . ~ol~~ns. The fourth story, added 
about 1889, has a mullion window with transom between 
each of the Corinthian capitaled pilasters. 

- Each ·cor.ner of the flat roof ends in a two bay wide 
gable with moulded cornice. Alternately spaced brackets 

· and panels embellish the friez~, along with five circular, 
decorative air vents, one under · each gable and the others 
centered above the three center bays. 

The symmetry of the second and third storli:~s of the north 
facade is repeated on the west elevation. The first ten 
windows each have an Italianate arch, while the last 
five are segmentally arched with keystones. The fourth 
storyyhas segmental pediments over the first ten windows, 
and segmental arches with keystones are over the last 
five bays. All the windows have decorated lugsills. 
Both ends and the center of the roof have gables identi­
cal to those on the facade. Three decorative air vents 
and paired brackets embellish the plain frieze. 
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7. Description (Continued- Page 2) 

STATE 

Arkansas 
COUNTY 

Pulaski 

The south and eas t elevations of the Capital have faced 
alleyways throughout the building's history. Be cause these 
elevations were never intended for public view, they are 
very plain with brick veneer and simple window construction. 

On entering the main lobby of the Capital Hotel, one first 
notices the inlaid tile flooring, the two parallel rows of 
columns with uniquely decorated capitals, and the gray 
marble staircase loc ated opposite the entrance. Both squared 
marble and round painted columns · support the exposed beams 
which terminate in a recessed ceiling. Thick panels of high­
ly polished gray marble line the interior walls of the lobby. 
On the west side is the hotel desk with the original wrought 
iron grill work and etched glass panels. 

Divided flights of the stairway lead to a second floor 
balcony which surrounds the light well over the rear part of 
the lobby. The square skylight at the top of the light well 
contains stained glass panes leaded together in a wooden 
frame. 

Surrounding the second floor light well are round arches 
supported by columns with Ionic capitals. A wrought iron 
with polished brass railing lies between each of the columns. 
Parallel rows of arcading lead to a parlor which opens onto 
the veranda. 

Most of the remaining area of the Capital is taken up by 
hotel rooms. Wide and spacious hallways are lined by door­
ways with symmetrically moulded trim and corner blocks. 
Each room has a fifteen foot or higher ceiling. The base­
boards and window and door trim are made of polished wood. 

Though several alterations have been made in the interior 
and on parts of the exterior, the important changes were 
made within a few years of the original construction and 
are in keeping with the original style. Beneath the peeling 
paint the Capital Hotel retains the grandiose Victorian ele-
gance of an earlier era. 0 1
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0 18th Century 
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losophy 
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Sculpture 

Socia 1/Human-

itarian 

Theater 

Transportation 

0 20th Century 

0 Urban Planning 

(X] Other (Specify) 

For one hundred years the Capital Hotel building has 
stood in downtown Little Rock as a relic of the Gilded 
Age of American histo"ry. From its opening in 1877 until 
just after the turn of the century, the Capital was the 
leading hotel in Little Rock and the center of public 
life in the state. 

The land on which the Capital now stands belonged for 
many years to Judge George C. Watkins, a prominent Little 
Rock attorney and Chief Justice of the Arkansas Supreme 
Court. In June, 1872, the land was sold to Mr. William P. 
Denckla. Mr. Denckla, one of the builders of tne Little 
Rock and Fort Smith Railroad owned several buildings on 
the "Denckla block," and the' bui-lding he erected on the 
northwest corner became the most important. · 

Using a cast iron front purchased in New York and 
shipped in pieces on a water route · to Little Roc~,: Mr. 
Denckla built a three-story brick structure . When a 
fourth story was late'r added to the building, -ja qa:;;t 
iron facade was included to harmonize with the cast iron 
front on the lower floors. The Denckla building was 
originally intended for stores and offices, and it filled 
this capacity for the next four years. 

During the 1870's Little Rock was growing and expanding 
rapidly as the city recovered from the Civil War . In 
1876 the weekly Arkansas Gazette described the need for 
a public guest residence as an ". • • urgent necessity 
that our city, just now struggling into life and sta­
bility, should have a public house for the accommodati®m 
of the traveling community. The fitness of the build­
ing and site ••• demand the change" of the Denckla 
building into a hotel. 



Arkansas Gazette, December 25, 1876; January 1, 21, 1877; 
July 25, August 15, 1908. 

Arkansas Press City Directory for 1890. Little Rock: Press 
Printing Company, Publishers, 1890. 

The City of Little Rock, Guide to the City of Roses for Visitors 
and Citizens. Little Rock: Guide Publishing Company, 
1890. 

Little Rock and Argenta Arkansas; Descriptive Review. Memphis, 
Pittsburgh, and London: Historical and Descriptive 
Publishing Company, 1888. 

STATE: 

STATE : 

STATE: 

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na­

tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 

89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion 

in the National Register and certify that it has been 

P.Valuated according to the c-iteria and procedures set 

forth by the National Park SerVlce. The recommended 

level of significance of this nomination is : 

National D State Local D 

Officer 

Date March 8, J 9 74 

I hereby certify that this property is included in the 

National Register. 

Director, Office of ArcheoloQy and Historic Preservation 

Date 
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8. Significance (Continued - Page 2) 

On December 21, 1876, Colonel A. G. DeShon and Major John D. 
Adams leased the Denckla building, and within a month they 
converted the office building into a hotel. The Denckla 
building was described as one of the finest edifices in the 0 

South and a fair rival to model structures in Northern cities. 
Colonel DeShon altered the interior to match the grand facade. 

In deciding on a name for the planned hotel"Major Adams 
asked a Little Rock lady to suggest a fitting title. Mrs. 
Morehead Wright complied with the request, and her reply 
was as follows: 

Major John D. Adams: Appreciating the compliment 
of being ask~d to name your hotel, I can think of 
no name more appropriate than "The Capital Hotel", 
as it is a capital enterprise located in a capital 
building, which will do honor to the capital of the 
state, and I trust prove a capital success to your­
self and Maj. DeShon. 

When the Capital Hotel opened on January 22, 1877, it was 
beautifully furnished and had daintily figured carpets in 
every room. Gas provided the lighting system throughout. 
A magnetized annuciator enabled each guest to request 
individual room service by merely pushing a button. In 
keeping with the current fashion among first-class hotels, 
the Capital provided its guests with a restaurant, bar, 
barber shop and billiard hall. 

For the next thirty years the Capital was the leading hotel 
in Little Rock. It became the unofficial political head­
quarters of the entire state, and within its walls the suc­
cess or failure of many an office-seeker was determined. 
One of the most famous political battles waged within the 
walls of the Capital was that between J. D. Walker of 
Fayetteville and R. w. Johnson of Little Rock, both candi­
dates for the United States Senate in 1879. Walker had 
headquarters in one end of the hotel and Johnson in the 
other. From their respective rooms one of the most memor­
able political campaigns in the history of the State was 
directed. 

GPO 921-724 
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Before being converted into a hotel the Denckla building was 
involved in another and bigger political battle . In 1874 
the Brooks-Baxter War was being waged, and President Ulysses 
s. Grant sent Federal troops to intervene. The Denckla build­
ing served as headquarters for Federal officers. It also 
served as the dividing line between tth.e Brooks and Baxter 
forces, with the middle ground in front of the present hotel 
being occupied by Federal troops attempting to prevent a 
clash. 

In its heyday the Capn±al Hotel served as the temporary home 
for Little Rock's most distinguished visitors. During his 
1880 visit to the city, President Grant stayed at the Capital, 
and the facade received a new coat of paint in honor of this 
special guest. 

Business was so prosperous for the Capital that a fourth 
story was added to the original three story structure . In an 
advertisement published in 1890, it was announced that the 
hotel had been "enlarged, improved, refitted and refurnished." 
A few years later another addition was made to the rear of 
the building. ~n the early twentieth century the lobby was 
elegantly redecorated; however, by this time the popularity 
of the Capital was beginning to wane. A rival hotel was 
opened across the street, and was destined to replace the 
Capital as the political and social center of Arkansas. 

The Capital Hotel has never closed its doors for any great 
length of time, but has continually served the public since 
1877. Other establishments have dominated the Little Rock 
hotel business in the twentieth century, but the Capital, 
unlike many, has never been forced to close. Ironically, 
the neighboring hotel which took and retained for sixty 
years the Capital's prominent position, will soon be de­
molished. Yet the historic Capital Hotel will continue to 
stand as the visible reminder of a great era . Because of 
its stately architecture, its cast iron front and its historic 
role as the State's most important hotel, the Capital Hotel 
is one of the most significant buildings in Arkansas 
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Advisory 
Council On 
Historic 
Preservation 

1522 K Street, NW 
Washington. DC 20005 

February 12, 1981 

Mr. Jonathan Markley 
Economic Development Administration 
600 American Bank Tower 
221 West Sixth 
Austin, Texas 78701 

Dear Mr. Markley: 

Reply to: 

CO PY 

Lake Plaza South, Suite 616 
44 Union Roulevard 
Lakewood, CO 80228 

This is to acknowledge that the Council is in receipt of the final plans 
and specifications for the rehabilitation of the lcapitol Hotel, Little 
Rock, Arkansas, a property listed on the National Register of Historic 
Places. After reviewing the plans and specifications, the Executive 
Director finds no reason to object to the undertaking as proposed. 

' 
We understand that your office and the Arkansas State Historic Preservation 
Officer (SHPO) have also been provided an opportunity to review the 
construction documents. We further understand that a copy of the SHPO's 
letter which states her concurrence with the suitability of the plans will 
be provided for the Council's files. Therefore, it · is our opinion that 
stipulation one of the Memorandum of Agreement entered into by the Economic 
Development Administration and the Council and ratifie~ by the Chairman on 
August 15, 1979, has been satisfactorily fulfilled. 

We are appreciative of your cooperation in this matter. 

~ 
Louis S. Wall 
Chief, Western Division 

of Project Review 


